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ALBERTA
MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS

Office of the Minister
MLA, Calgary-Hays

May 24, 2024
Dear Chief Elected Official

As you are aware, | recently introduced Bill 20: the Municipal Affairs Statutes Amendment Act,
2024 which proposes to modify two key pieces of legislation for Alberta municipalities — the
Municipal Government Act (MGA) and the Local Authorities Election Act (LAEA). The proposed
legislation will help municipalities accelerate housing development, strengthen provincial
oversight, and update the rules for local elections and locally elected officials.

Firstly, | want to recognize the passionate and constructive feedback | have received from the
many mayors, reeves, councillors, and school board trustees across the province over the past
few weeks. Your involvement and ardent commentary are a testament to your good work as
public servants.

I’'ve heard your concerns and at the May 23, 2024, Committee of the Whole, amendments to Bill
20 were tabled to further clarify the intent of this bill and ensure that locally elected municipal
governments will continue to govern in response to the priorities and interests of their residents.

Bill 20 will maintain the municipal ability to govern affairs within local jurisdiction while allowing
Cabinet to step in when municipal bylaw crosses into provincial jurisdiction. This will ensure that
municipal councils remain focused on municipal issues that their constituents elected them to
address. Cabinet’s authority to intervene in municipal bylaws will be considered as a last resort;

| anticipate that this power will be used very rarely, if ever. As you may know, the ability for the
provincial government to repeal or amend bylaws, or dismiss councillors is not new, as
municipalities receive their authority from the provincial government as laid out in Canada’s
Constitution and Alberta’s MGA. While Bill 20 proposes to update the process for the provincial
government to act more quickly in extenuating, urgent circumstances, these are not new powers.

These amendments will provide additional guardrails for when municipal bylaws can be repealed
through the Cabinet process, and remove the direct ability for Cabinet to dismiss a councillor.
Cabinet would retain the authority to have a vote of the electors on the potential removal of a
councillor, putting this choice back into the hands of the voters.

We have also received a number of questions about some of the changes to the LAEA
regarding fundraising. Bill 20 will also increase transparency in campaign financing. Under the
old rules, the LAEA only regulated Third Party Advertisers (TPAs) who advertised for the
promotion or opposition of a candidate during an election, with donations to such entities limited
to a maximum of $30,000 for all individuals, unions, and corporations. The proposed changes
require TPAs who are interested in an issue (rather than a specific candidate) to register and
report their finances. We are further proposing to restrict contributions to $5,000, and for
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contributions to only be made by Albertans, Alberta companies, or Alberta unions. We are also
proposing to further develop expense limits in the regulations.

Currently, municipal candidates are able to organize into political parties or slates without any
rules around their organization. Adding rules around political parties will increase transparency
for electors. Bill 20 will provide rules around enabling local candidates to identify with local
political parties without direct affiliation to provincial or federal parties. | have publicly stated my
intention to implement the option to include municipal political party affiliation on ballots only in
the cities of Edmonton and Calgary. | will also note that any that no candidate will be required to
join a political party - they will always remain voluntary and local.

I will continue to consider feedback as | bring Bill 20 through the legislative process. Alberta’s
government remains committed to fairness and due process and will continue working with local
authorities to ensure Albertans have the effective local representation they deserve. Should the
legislation pass, Municipal Affairs will be engaging with municipalities and stakeholders over the
coming months to explain the changes Bill 20 will require at a local level, and develop
regulations as required.

Please find enclosed the Bill 20 Fact Sheet, which can be found on the Government of Alberta
website. This document offers clarifications on what Bill 20 means for municipalities and how
the changes will impact municipal governments. For more information, please visit:
www.alberta.ca/strengthening-local-elections-and-councils.

Sincerely,

Ric Mclver
Minister

Attachment: Bill 20 — Fact Sheet
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